BOARD OF PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSIONERS
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Tuesday, April 22, 2025
4600 East 63rd Trafficway

12:30 O’CLOCK P.M.
Workshop

2:00 O’CLOCK P.M.
BOARD MEETING

Members of the Board may attend this meeting via video conference.

Workshop
12:30 p.m. — Port Authority — Riverfront Park

1 p.m. — Community Center Assessment
1:45 p.m. — Plaza Tennis Center

Board Meeting

Call to Order — President Beth Haden

Roll Call

Agenda

1. Considering Board approval of March 25, 2025 Board Minutes. Attachment A
2. Resolution #32861 — Considering Board approval of the Agreement with Black Archives of Mid America

in the amount of $300,000. Carmaletta Willliams, Director of BAMA will be attending Board meeting to
give a overview of programming at BAMA. Attachment B

Resolution #32862 - Considering Board approval of the Agreement with Elmwood Cemetery Society for

City to aid in the cost for mowing and maintenance to the grounds and burials sites in the amount of
$60,000. Attachment C

Resolution #32863 — Considering Board approval of the Grant Memorandum of Understanding with KC
Park Foundation to receive a donation in the amount of $100,000 for a basketball court renovation in
Ashland Square Park. Attachment D

Resolution #32864 - Considering Board approval of a Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Jazz
District Renaissance Corporation to hold the American Jazz Walk on the Paseo Boulevard. Attachment E

Resolution #32865 — Considering Board approval of a Facility Use with Concession Agreement with
O’Neill Events/Boulevardia to hold the festival in Washington Square Park. ' Attachment F

Resolution #32866 - Considering Board approval of a Facility Use with Concession Agreement with
Kansas City Folk Festival to hold the festival in Washington Square Park. Attachment G



Page 2 of 3 — Boad Agenda — April 22, 2025

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Resolution #32867 - Considering Board approval of a Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
Juneteenth KC Parade and Festival for the use of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., Truman Road and the
Gregg Klice Community Center. Attachment H

Resolution #32868 — Considering Board approval of a Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
Black Women Making Friends KC for the use of Theis Park. Attachment I

Resolution #32869 — Considering Board approval of a Facility Use with Concession Agreement with KC
Rebels Youth for the use of Central Park to host a youth track meet. Attachment J

Resolution #32870 — Considering Board approval of a Facility Use without Concessions Agreement with
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Glory Bible Fellowship International Church for the use of
Central Park. Attachment K

Resolution #32871 - Considering Board approval of a Professional Services Agreement with All Effort
LLC for Mayor’s Night/Club KC Summer Youth Programs at Gregg/Klice and Southeast Community
Centers in the amount of $70,000. Attachment L

Resolution #32872 - Considering Board approval of a Professional Services Agreement with All Effort
LLC for Mayor’s Nights/Night Hoops Summer Youth Program at Southeast, Hillcrest, Garrison and
Gregg/Klice Community Centers in the amount of $110,000. Attachment M

Resolution #32873 - Considering Board approval of a Professional Services Agreement with All Effort

LLC- Mayor’s Nights/Night Nets Summer Youth Program at Hillcrest Community Center in the amount of
$20,000. Attachment N

Resolution #32874 - Considering Board approval Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
Brookside Soccer for the use of Frank Vaydik Park. Attachment O

Resolution #32875- Considering Board approval of a Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
Northland Static Volleyball Club for the use of Kansas City North Community Center. Attachment P

Resolution #32876 — Considering Board approval of a Facility Use without Concession Agreement
Ryogoku Soccer Academy for the use of 9" and Van Brunt Athletic Fields. Attachment Q

Resolution #32877 - Considering Board approval of a Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
Kenneth Brink for the use of Kansas City North Community Center to offer judo instructions to youth,
advanced youth and adults. Attachment R

Resolution #32878 - Considering Board approval of a of Amendment #1 to the Facility Use without
Concession Agreement with Come to Jesus Worship and Praise Church for the use of Gregg/Klice
Community Services to conduct church services. Attachment S

Resolution #32879 - Considering Board approval of a Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
VLJ Kings for the use of Marlborough Community Center for youth basketball practice. ~ Attachment T

Resolution #32880 - Considering Board approval of the Northland Trailhead Study. Attachment U



Page 3 of 3 — Boad Agenda — April 22, 2025

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Resolution #32881 — Considering Board approval of Change Order #2 with National Streetscape, Inc. for
the Teresa Lynn Rynard Park Pedestrian Bridge in the amount of $5,700 and extend the contract time to

September 11, 2025. Attachment V
Resolution #32882 - Considering Board of a SLBE Design Professional Services Agreement for Budd Park
Shelter and Loop Trail Design in the amount of $159,125. Attachment W
Resolution #32883 - Considering Board approval of a SLBE Design Services Agreement with Pendulum
Studio, LLC for Satchel Paige Stadium Masterplan in the amount of $70,000. Attachment X
Resolution #32884 — Considering Board of Change Order #1 with Whitewater West Industries, LTD for
Kiddie Play Structure for the Springs Aquatic Center in the amount of $75,000. Attachment Y
Directors Update

Public Hearing — Public Testimony is Limited to 2 Minutes.

Adjourn

The Board may return to the conference room following the regular meeting for additional discussion of items
on the agenda of the Board’s Workshop that were not completed prior to the regular meeting.

Any closed session may be held via teleconference.
Pursuant to Section 610.021 subsection 1 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri to discuss legal matters, litigation,

or privileged communications with attorneys.

Pursuant to Section 610.021 subsection 2 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri to discuss real estate;
Pursuant to Section 610.021 subsections 3 and 13 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri to discuss personnel

matters.
Pursuant to Section 610.021 subsection 12 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri to discuss sealed bids or

proposals.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 1

BOARD MEETING
March 25, 2025

1:00 O°CLOCK P.M.
Workshop

2:00 O°CLOCK P.M.
Board Meeting

4600 East 63rd Trafficway
Kansas City, Missouri 64130

Workshop

12:30 p.m. — Open Discussion

1 p.m. — 1:15 p.m. — Arbor Villa Pool Public Engagement Survey Results
1:15 p.m. - 1:30 p.m. — Troost Bridge Railing Replacement Study

Open Discussion

Board Meeting

Call to Order — President Beth Haden

Roll Call:

Board Members Present: President Haden, Commissioner Contreras, Commissioner Meier, Commissioner
and Commissioner Smith

Board Members Absent: Commissioner Taylor Absent

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Board Minutes for February 25, 2025.

Presentation by Wayne Snyder — Gregg Klice Community Center Advisory Board — Wayne Snyder gave
a brief overview of their partnership with the Parks and Recreation Department and thanked them for the
new fitness equipment, the support for the placement of the memorial plaques for Ms. Jones and Mr.
Wainright and continued support for the Youth Memorial Basketball tournament.  In closing Mr. Snyder
commented that in his 25 years going to the community center, that he has not seen a decline in youth
participation as it is today. Mr. Snyder asked that the Board consider a moratorium on youth fees. The
Board thanked Mr. Snyder for his years of dedication and years of volunteerism at the center.

Resolution #32766 — Termination of the Kansas City Campus for Animal Care Management
Services and Parking Lot Agreement

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board approved the
Termination of the Kansas City Campus For Animal Care Management Services and Parking Lot

Agreement.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 2

Background: The City (Neighborhood Services and the Parks Departments) and Kansas City Campus for
Animal Care entered into a ten-year agreement in July of 2019 for the management, maintenance, and
operation of the Animal Campus in Swope Park. The Animal Campus includes the building, facility,
grounds, median islands, parking lots, and land. This facility is located on approximately fifteen acres,
within Swope Park, at the northeast corner of the intersection of Gregory Boulevard and Elmwood Avenue.

This contract is set to expire in July of 2029. However, the City and Kansas City Campus for Animal Care
have agreed upon an early termination date of April 8, 2025. The City is currently negotiating a new
management services agreement and parking lot agreement for a period of one year with KC Pet Project.

Resolution #32767 — Management Services and Parking Lot Agreement with KC Pet proiject for
Animal Campus in Swope Park

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved. of
a new one-year Management Services and Parking Lot Agreement with KC Pet and authorized the
Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: The City (Neighborhood Services and the Parks Departments) and Kansas City Campus for
Animal Care entered into a ten-year agreement in July of 2019 for the management, maintenance, and
operation of the Animal Campus in Swope Park. The previous Resolution #32766 allowed for the early
termination of the Agreement with Kansas City Campus for Animal Care.

The City is currently negotiating a new management services agreement and parking lot agreement for a
period of one year with KC Pet Project. KC Pet Project is a 501c3, nonprofit charitable organization. The
Neighborhood Services Department will administer, fund expenses, and manage this agreement exactly
like they did with the previous agreement. The Parks Department has no responsibilities under either of
these agreements. The Parks Department is a party to this agreement as the Lessor since the Animal
Campus is located on parkland.

Resolution #32759 — License Agreement with CIVICPLUS

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
License Agreement with CivicPlus and authorized the Director or designee to execute the agreement on
behalf of the Board.

Background.: CivicPlus started back in June of 1998 with the goal of creating a website solution that
allowed municipal staff to maintain their websites daily without needing a technical webmaster. As
technology advanced, more services were brought online, expanding their vision to make local
government work better as a whole.

Today, CivicPlus provides public sector technology that automates processes, digitizes services, and
enhances civic experiences. Their wide range of government software solutions are designed to be
flexible, scalable, and customizable, ensuring a frictionless experience for residents and staff.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 3

One of their new offerings is PASS Lite which contains everything needed to quickly and easily understand
and optimize fitness and recreation programming. This will allow results of program cost recovery in real-
time, illustrated through customer reports. Automation will reduce administrative overhead by skipping
manual data entry by providing the ability to import program data, enabling informed decision-making
with real-time financial data.

The total investment for the initial term is $10,625.00, discounted from $25,375.00, and includes one-time
fees and year 1 annual services. Annual recurring services will be billed at $15,250.00, automatically
renewed unless 60 days’ notice is provided prior to renewal date. An annual uplift of 5% will be applied to

year 2.

Resolution #32768 — Cooperative Agreement with ReStart, Inc./Project Homeless Connect

On a motion by Commissioner Contreras, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board approved the
Cooperative Agreement with ReStart, Inc./Project Homeless Connect and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: ReStart, Inc. has requested the use of the facilities at Gregg/Klice Community Center to
host their Project Homeless Connect program. Project Homeless Connect aims to support those facing or
currently experiencing homelessness by providing assistance to help them transition out of homelessness
into a safe and stable environment by receiving same-day resources.

Services provided include on-the-spot legal counsel, job placement, housing solutions, medical screening
and assistance, vision and dental services, beauty and wellness services, birth certificates, and fountain ID
cards. The goal is that by providing these tools, homelessness in Kansas City will be reduced and give
purpose and support to those seeking a brighter future.

Access to the facilities will be provided at no charge. This Agreement will begin on May 12, 2025, and end
no later than May 13, 2025. Commercial general liability insurance will be provided per City’s
requirements.

Resolution #32769 — Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Miracle Temple

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use without Concessions Agreement with Miracle Temple and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Miracle Temple is requesting the use of facilities at Mary Williams Neal Community
Center for the purpose of conducting church services on Sundays from 11:00 a.m. — 1:00 p.m. during the
term of this Agreement. They agree to confine messaging only to participants in church services in the
rental space. No messaging shall occur in any other space at the community center including the
sidewalks, parking lots and common areas.

They will compensate the City $50.00/hour of usage for a total estimated payment of $5,100.00 with
payments to be made monthly. Nonpayment of rental fees will result in immediate termination of this
agreement. The terms of this agreement will begin on March 30, 2025, and end no later March 15, 2026.
Miracle Temple will provide commercial general liability insurance according to the City’s requirements.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 4

Resolution #32770 — Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Missouri Wolverines Youth
Organization, Inc.

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Missouri Wolverines Youth Organization, Inc. and
authorized the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Missouri Wolverines Youth Organization, Inc., requests the use of the football field at
Heim’s Electric Park, located at 800 N. Chestnut Trafficway, for the limited purpose of youth flag and
tackle football clinics, practices, games, and associated activities. Activities will take place Monday
through Friday from 5:00 p.m. — 9:00 p.m., Saturday and Sunday from 8:00 a.m. — 7: 00 p.m. during the
Term of this Agreement.

The Missouri Wolverines Youth Organization will compensate the City $20/field/day for a total projected
compensation of $3,500.00, to be paid monthly upon receipt of an invoice from Athletics.

Nonpayment of rental fees will result in immediate termination of this Agreement.

They agree to comply with the Athletic Field Use policy. The Term of this Agreement shall begin on
April 27, 2025, and end no later than November 15, 2025.

Missouri Wolverines Youth Organization will provide commercial general liability and sexual abuse
molestation insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32771 — Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Rachael Waddell Tai Chi

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Rachael Waddell Tai Chi and authorized the Director or

designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Rachael Waddell Tai Chi is requesting the use of the exercise room at Kansas City North
Community Room for the purpose of offering monthly adult martial arts classes. Classes will take place
on the second Saturday of each month from 9:30a.m. — 11:30a.m. during the term of this Agreement.

The City will be compensated $50.00/hour, or $100.00/day, to be paid monthly, for a total estimated
revenue payment of $1,000.00. Nonpayment of rental fees will result in immediate termination of this Agreement.

This agreement will begin on May 10, 2025, and end no later than April 11, 2026. Rachacl Waddell Tai
Chi will provide commercial general liability insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32772 — Facility Use without Concession Agreement with E.D.O, Soccer Academy

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use without Concession Agreement with E.D.O. Soccer Academy and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 5

Background: Estrella De Oro, also known as E.D.O Soccer Academy, was founded by the father & son
duo - Juan & Victor Muniz - in 2001. E.D.O Academy's mission focuses on giving kids the opportunity to
practice soccer while giving back and learning to be active members of their communities. E.D.O
supports children, and it is their goal to provide them with the motivation/opportunities for growth while
seeking post-secondary education with the help of bringing soccer to the community. An additional focus
is to create a welcoming community that promotes diversity, inclusivity, and respect for all.

E.D.O. Soccer Academy is requesting the use of the soccer facilities at 9™ and Van Brunt for youth soccer
activities. Activities will take place from 6:00 p.m. — 8:00 p.m. on Tuesdays and Thursdays during the
terms of this Agreement.

They will compensate the City $37.50 per hour for total compensation of $1,050.00. This rate reflects a
50% fee reduction approved by the Parks and Recreation director, per terms in the Athletic Field Use
Policy and is one of two that can be granted during the calendar year. Nonpayment of rental fees will result
in immediate termination of this Agreement.

They agree to comply with the Athletic Field Use Policy. The terms of this Agreement will begin on April
1, 2025, and end no later than May 22, 2025. E.D.O. Soccer Academy will provide commercial general
liability and sexual abuse/molestation insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32773 — Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Futbol Kansas City (Good
Standings Documentation with the State of Missouri has not been provided)

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Futbol Kansas City, pending Futbol Kansas City shows
proof of Good Standing with the State of Missouri and authorized the Director or designee to execute the

agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Futbol Kansas City is requesting the use of facilities at 9" and Van Brunt Athletic Fields
Park for the purpose of conducting adult soccer games that will take place on Sundays, Wednesdays, and
Fridays during the terms of this Agreement.

Futbol Kansas City will compensate the City $225.00 per game for a total compensation of $4,725.00, to
be paid monthly upon receipt of Athletics invoice.

Nonpayment of rental fees will result in immediate termination of the Agreement. They agree to comply
with the Athletic Field Use policy.

The terms of this agreement will begin on April 1, 2025, and end no later than May 25, 2025. Futbol
Kansas City will provide commercial general liability insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32774 — Facility Use without Concessions Agreement with Guadalupe Center High
School

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Guadalupe Center High School and authorized the
Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board,



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 6

Background: Guadalupe Center High School is requesting the use of facilities at 9 and Van Brunt
Athletic Fields Park, 901 Van Brunt Boulevard, for the purpose of conducting youth soccer practices on
one half of the field and games on the entire field. Activities will take place Monday — Friday from
4:00p.m. — 6:00p.m. during the terms of this Agreement.

Guadalupe Center High School will compensate the City $25.00/hour for practices and $100.00/games,
reflecting a 50% fee reduction approved by the Director, and is one of two that can be used during the
calendar year. The estimated total payment will be $2,150.00, paid monthly upon receipt of Athletics

invoice.

Rental nonpayment will result in termination of this Agreement. They will comply with the Athletic Field
Use Policy. This Agreement will begin on April 1, 2025, and end no later than May 16, 2025.

Guadalupe Centers, Inc. will provide commercial general liability and sexual abuse molestation insurance
per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32775 — Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Midwest Cricket League

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Smith, the Board approved the
Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Midwest Cricket League and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Midwest Cricket League is requesting the use of facilities at Minor Park Cricket Field,
11103 Holmes Road for the purpose of conducting adult cricket practices and games on Saturdays and
Sundays from 10:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m. during the terms of this Agreement.

Midwest Cricket League will compensate the City $225.00/game for a total estimated revenue of
$14,175.00, paid monthly upon receipt of an invoice from Athletics.

Nonpayment of rental fees will result in immediate termination of this Agreement. They will comply
with the Athletic Field Use Policy.

This Agreement will begin on April 15, 2025, and end no later than November 2, 2025. Midwest Cricket
League will provide commercial general liability insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32776 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Kansas City Sports LLC

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Kansas City Sports LLC and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: Kansas City Sports LLC is requesting the use of facilities at Tiffany Hills Sports Complex,
located at 9400 N. Congress Avenue, for the purpose of conducting youth softball tournaments on
Fridays, Saturdays, and Sundays during the term of this agreement.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 7

Kansas City Sports LLC will compensate the City 15% of registration fees, 20% of net concession profits
in addition to $30/hour for lights for a total estimated revenue of $54,850.00, with payments due monthly
upon receipt of Athletics invoice.

Nonpayment of rental fees will result in the immediate termination of this Agreement. They agree to
comply with the Athletics Field Use Policy. This agreement will begin on April 11, 2025, and end no
later than September 28, 2025.

Kansas City Sports LLC will provide commercial general liability and sexual abuse/molestation insurance
per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32777 — Amendment #1 to the Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
Heartland HEMA LLC

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved
Amendment #1 to the Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Heartland HEMA LLC, with and
authorized the Director or designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.

Background: On May 24, 2024, the Parks Board of Commissioners, through Resolution #32548,
approved an agreement with Heartland HEMA LLC to conduct Historical Martial Arts Instruction at
Kansas City North Community Center. Classes are held on Mondays and Wednesdays from 6:00 p.m. —
8:00 p.m. City is compensated a 40% revenue share of approximately $220.00/month for a total estimated
revenue payment of $2,640.00. Payments will be made monthly.

The original terms of the Agreement began on June 10, 2024, and would end on April 30, 2025.
This Amendment #1 will change the end date to April 30, 2026. All other terms stated in the original

Agreement remain the same.
Nonpayment of rental fees will result in immediate termination of this Agreement.

HEMA LLC will provide commercial general liability and sexual abuse/molestation insurance per City’s
requirements.

Resolution #32778 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with North Kansas City Area Baseball
League

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board approved the
Facility Use without Concession Agreement with North Kansas City Area Baseball League and
authorized the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: North Kansas City Area Baseball League is requesting the use of facilities at Platte
Purchase Park, located at North Platte Purchase Drive and NW 100 Street, and Waterwell Athletic
Complex, located at 1101 NW Tullison Road for the purpose of conducting youth baseball practices and
games Monday — Friday 4:00p.m. — 10:00p.m., Saturday and Sunday 8:00a.m. — 10:00p.m. during the
term of this Agreement.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 8

North Kansas City Area Baseball League will compensate the City 15% of registration fees, 20% of net
concession profits in addition to $30/hour for lights for a total estimated revenue of $22,345.48, with
payments due monthly upon receipt of Athletics invoice.

Nonpayment of rental fees will result in the immediate termination of this Agreement. They agree to
comply with the Athletics Field Use Policy. This agreement will begin on April 1, 2025, and end no later
than October 31, 2025.

North Kansas City Area Baseball League will provide commercial general liability and sexual
abuse/molestation insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32779 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Heart of American Gesneriad

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Heart of American Gesneriad and authorized t Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Heart of America Gesneriad (HAGS) is requesting the use of facilities with
concessions at Loose Park Garden Center for the purpose of holding meetings and an exhibition/sale. The
request is for six meetings and one exhibition. In lieu of rental fees HAGS will hold their meetings as
educational events open to the public.

The term of this agreement will begin March 1, 2025, and end December 31, 2025. Heart of America
Gesneriad Society will provide insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32780 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Mo-Kan Daylily Society

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Mo-Kan Daylily Society and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Mo-Kan Daylily Society is requesting the use of facilities with concessions at Loose
Park Garden Center for the purpose of holding meetings and an exhibition/sale. The request is for 11
meetings and one exhibition. In lieu of rental Mo-Kan Daylily Society will hold their meetings as
educational events open to the public.

The term of this agreement will begin March 26, 2025, and end December 31, 2025. Mo-Kan Daylily
Society will provide insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32781 — Facility Use wit Concession Agreement with Greater Kansas City African
Violet Club

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Greater Kansas City Aftrican Violet Club and authorized
the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.



4

Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 9

Background: The Greater Kansas City African Violet Club is requesting the use of facilities with
concessions at Loose Park Garden Center for the purpose of holding meetings and an exhibition/sale. The
request is for 11 meetings and one exhibition. In lieu of rental fees the Greater Kansas City African Violet
Club will hold their meetings as educational events open to the public.

The term of this agreement will begin March 26, 2025, and end December 31, 2025. African Violet Club
has provided proof of insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32782 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Sho-Me African Violet Club

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Sho-Me African Violet Club and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Sho-Me African Violet Club is requesting the use of facilities with concessions at
Loose Park Garden Center for the purpose of holding meetings and an exhibition/sale. The request is for
11 meetings and one exhibition. In lieu of rental fees Sho-Me African Violet Club will hold their
meetings as educational events open to the public.

The term of this agreement will begin March 26, 2025, and end December 31, 2025. Sho-Me African Violet
Club has provided proof of insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32783 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Kansas City Ikebana

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Kansas City Ikebana and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Kansas City Ikebana is requesting the use of facilities with concessions at Loose Park
Garden Center for the purpose of holding meetings and an exhibition/sale. The request is for 11 meetings
and one exhibition. In lieu of rental Kansas City Ikebana will hold their meetings as educational events

open to the public.

The term of this agreement will begin March 26, 2025, and end December 31, 2025. Kansas City Ikebana
will provide insurance per City’s requirements.

Resolution #32784 — Bid Award to Looks Great Services, Inc,

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board approved the
Bid Award for Tree Trimming Services FY25-29 contract to Looks Great Services, Inc., in the amount of
$800,000.00, and a term of June 30, 2026, and authorized the Director or designee to execute the contract

on behalf of the Board.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 10

Background: On Wednesday, December 18, 2024, two bids were received for Tree Trimming Services
FY25-29. The Staff recommends entering into a contract with Looks Great Services, Inc. as the lowest and
best bidder. The cost per tree diameter inch for tree pruning is $9.50.

This contract will address tree maintenance pruning needs on public properties and right of ways, including
citizen’s requests, 311 Call Center requests, and requests from other sources. It is estimated that this
contract will prune approximately 5,263 trees. The term of this Contract will be for a period of eighteen-
(18) months, not to exceed June 30, 2026. The City has the option to extend the term of this Contract with
approval from the Board of Parks & Recreation Commissioners for three-(3) additional one-year renewal

periods.

Funding for these services is found in Forestry accounts #1000 707771 611060 70BUDGET. We will
encumber $800,000.00 to execute this contract. The CREO department has approved MBE/WBE goals
for this contract of 11% and 11% respectively.

Resolution #32785 — Concession Agreement with Urban Neighborhood Initiative

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Concession Agreement with Urban Neighborhood Initiative and authorized the Director or designee to
execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Urban Neighborhood Initiative is a Community Development Corporation (CDC) that strives
to build communities with purpose on purpose where every household member is engaged, encouraged,
elevated, and educated through the joys of stable housing, quality programming, and impactful services.

The Urban Neighborhood Initiative wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for the
use of Theis Park, including the amphitheater, located at 4701 Oak St. to hold the UNI Recess: Jam Session
on September 27, 2025. This year, a local artist will perform a concert for the community, with all proceeds
going to UNI. There will be food, games, bounce houses and drinks for the community to enjoy. They are
expecting 1,500 participants.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $1,000.00 for this one-day ticketed
event. Set-up for the festival will begin at 7am and tear down will end at 10pm on September 27, 2025. The

event hours are from 12pm to 8pm. Security will be on site and the noise permit will end at 9pm and be for
a reasonable volume. The certificate of insurance will cover all applicable requirements and be due 14 days

before the first event date.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

1.  Alist of items for sale

2. A plan for traffic and parking control

3. Safety and security plan

4, Marketing plan

5. Certificate of insurance per city requirements
6. Map of event layout

7.

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 11

8. A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event.

Resolution #32786 - Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Kansas City Irish Festival

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Kansas City Irish Festival and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Kansas City Irish Fest is dedicated to promoting the culture, music and history of Ireland
and of the Irish people who call Kansas City home. The Kansas City Irish Fest offers attendees the chance
to see some of the top Irish entertainment in the world. Their mission is to graciously provide our local and
regional community with the best, friendliest and most enjoyable Irish cultural weekend by creating and
presenting the best blend of music, education, and great craic.

The Kansas City Irish Fest wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for the use of
Washington Square Park, located at 100 E. Pershing Rd and Grand Boulevard from 26th street to OK street
and Pershing Rd from Grand Boulevard to McGee, to hold the 2025 Kansas City Irish Fest on August 29
through August 31, 2025. The festival will include Irish culture vendors, food, beverages, as well as alcohol
vendors.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $18,500.00 for this three-day event.
Set-up for the festival will begin at 6am on August 26, 2025, and tear down will end at 10pm on September
2,2025. This agreement also includes the responsibility of the licensee for restoring the park and pavers to
their original condition or reimbursing costs associated with repairing the park and pavers to their original
condition. KCPD, KCFD, FBI, and KC Medical will be on hand for this event. The certificate of insurance
will cover all applicable requirements and be due 14 days before the first event date.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event.
A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event.

1. Alist of items for sale

2. A plan for traffic and parking control

3. Safety and security plan

4. Marketing plan

5. Certificate of insurance per city requirements
6. Map of event layout

7.

8.

Resolution #32787 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Brookside Community
Improvement District/Brookside Business Association

On a motion by Commissioner Contreras, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Brookside Community Improvement District/Brookside
Business Association and authorized the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the
Board.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 12

Background: Brookside Community Improvement District / Brookside Business Association’s Brookside
Art Annual event will feature over 180 artists that have been selected from hundreds of applications. The
Brookside Art Annual is the first major art show of the year and showcases top artists from across the
country and attracts thousands of art enthusiasts from across the region.

Brookside Community Improvement District / Brookside Business Association wishes to enter a Facility
Use and Concession agreement for the use of Brookside Court Park and Brookside Boulevard between 63™
Street and Meyer Boulevard to hold their Art Annual on May 2nd through May 4th, 2025. The Brookside
Art Annual is known for its festive atmosphere, hospitality, and convenience, and has become a must-attend
event for artists and art seekers alike.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $4,700 for this three-day event.
Set-up will begin May 1, 2025, at 8am and tear down will end on May 5, 2025, at 11pm. The organizers
expect 50,000 spectators over three days. KCPD and KCFD will be on site. Certificate of insurance will
cover all applicable requirements and be due 14 days before the first event date.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

A list of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Safety and security plan

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event

A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event

NI PARLODN ~

Resolution #32788 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Northeast Arts KC

On a motion by Commissioner Contreras, duly seconded by Commissioner Smith, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Northeast Arts KC and authorized the Director or designee
to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Northeast Arts KC’s mission is to provide, enhance, fund, market and support cultural events
which bring the visual and the performance arts to the public in the Historic Northeast community, without
regard to race, religion or ethnic group. They inspire neighbors to infuse art into practical work and everyday
living. The Chalk Walk event is a free event where artists will be invited to create art on the sidewalks
around the Concourse Fountain. The event will also include local musicians, puppet theater and local artists’
vendors selling their art.

Northeast Arts KC wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for the use of Concourse
Park located at 200 Benton Blvd, to hold the Chalk Walk event on May 10, 2025. They expect up to 600

attendees.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will waive all fees for this one-day sales on public
property event. The event hours are from 9am to Spm on May 10, 2025. A noise permit and the certificate
of insurance will cover all applicable requirements and will be due 14 days before the first date of the event.



Official Recard of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 13

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event
A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event

1.  Alist of items for sale

2. A plan for traffic and parking control

3. Safety and security plan

4.  Marketing plan

5. Certificate of insurance per city requirements
6. Map of event layout

7.

8.

Resolution #32789 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Kids Community Growing

Prosperity

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Kids Community Growing and authorized the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Kids Community Growing Prosperity (KCGP) is a nonprofit organization based in Kansas
City. Each year, the Kansas City Greek Picnic attracts a diverse audience of collegiate and graduate
members of African American Sororities and Fraternities from the Midwest and beyond. Attendees enjoy
a weekend-long festival of events and activities that entertain and serve the community. In addition to
community service activities and social events, KCGP encourages networking amongst diverse
professionals, health screenings and more.

KCGP wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concessions Agreement for the use of the Swope Park
Bandstand, located at 4177 Pavilion Road, to hold their Annual Kansas City Greek Festival, on June 21,
2025. The festival will include food, beverage, and merchandise vendors. They are expecting 750
participants over the course of this one-day event.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $1900.00 for this one-day event.
Set-up for the festival will begin at 8am on June 19 and tear down will end at 12pm on June 23, 2025.
Clean-up volunteers and security will be on site. Certificate of insurance will cover all applicable
requirements and be due 14 days before the first event date.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event.
A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event.

1. A list of items for sale

2. A plan for traffic and parking control

3. Safety and security plan

4. Marketing plan

5. Certificate of insurance per city requirements
6. Map of event layout

7.

8.

Resolution #32790 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Complete Party




Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 14

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Complete Party and authorized the Director or designee to
execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Party present, Mimosas in the Park, which is a bohemian-themed gathering that will feature
live music, small local businesses who will showcase their unique products and a delightful mimosa bar.
The event plans to have a diverse array of vendors, including the presence of a local yoga/Pilates instructor,
which will add a wellness touch to this lively event.

Complete Party wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for the use of Theis Park
located at 4701 Oak St. to hold the Mimosas in the Park event on August 31, 2025. The event will include
a stage, tables and chairs and vendor & VIP tents. They anticipate 950 attendees.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $1,500 for this one-day event. Set-
up for the festival will begin at 8am on August 30th and tear down will end at 5Spm on September 1, 2025.
The festival hours are from 9am to 2pm on August 31, 2025. Crowd control will be on site. The certificate
of insurance covers all applicable requirements and will be due 14 days before the first date of the event.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

A list of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Safety and security plan

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event

A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event

® N LA W~

Resolution #32791 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Sisters Living Beyond the
Ribbon

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Sisters Living Beyond the Ribbon and authorized the
Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Sisters Living Beyond the Ribbon was established in 2016 as a non-profit organization to
assist African American Women who are diagnosed with some form of Breast Cancer. Their Mission is to
educate, support and provide resources when needed. The Sisters Living Beyond the Ribbon 5k event will
have vendors, music and a survivor’s tent.

Sisters Living Beyond the Ribbon wishes to enter a Facility Use and Concession agreement for the use of
the Swope Park Bandstand, located at 4177 Pavilion Road, to hold the 9™ Annual Sisters Living Beyond
the Ribbon 5k walk/run event, September 27, 2025.

K.C Parks will waive all fees for this one-day event. Set-up for the event will begin at 5a.m. and tear down
will end at 2p.m. on September 27, 2025. The event hours are from 7:30a.m. to 1p.m. They are expecting



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 15

approximately 250 participants. The certificate of insurance will cover all applicable requirements and be
due 14 days before the first date of the event.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event
A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event

1. A list of items for sale

2. A plan for traffic and parking control

3. Safety and security plan

4. Marketing plan

5. Certificate of insurance per city requirements
6. Map of event layout

7.

8.

Resolution #32792 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Project Revive

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Project Revive and authorized the Director or designee to
execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Project Revive, a faith-based organization, is dedicated to transforming lives by connecting
underserved communities with essential resources, while simultaneously empowering local entrepreneurs.
Their mission is to bridge gaps, offer immediate support and create lasting change through meaningful
community engagement. The event plans to revolve around community outreach and all that attend should
be able to leave with something they need.

Project Revive wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for the use of Blue Hills
Park located at 2200 E. 53™ St, to hold the Pray 4 My Hood event on July 5, 2025. The event will include
vendors selling merchandise, hot meals, free products and non-profit assistance. They expect 150 attendees.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $1,100 for this one-day sales on
public property event and shelter fee. The organization has a sponsor who are paying these fees. The event
hours are from 10am to 5pm on July 5, 2025. The certificate of insurance will cover all applicable
requirements and will be due 14 days before the first date of the event.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

A list of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Safety and security plan

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event

A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event

NP =

Resolution #32793 — Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Unite KC




Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 16

On a motion by Commissioner Meier duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Unite KC and authorized the Director or designee to
execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Founded in 2020, Unite KC is a grassroots movement with a faith-based strategy working
toward racial healing in Kansas City. Unite KC focuses on taking action that prompts heart transformation,
builds community, and, ultimately, leads to racial healing. The free Unite KC Walk for Unity event includes
an approximately one mile walk along Troost Avenue, vendor sales, games, food, and live music and
activities for all ages as they form new or build existing relationships.

Unite KC wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for the use of the Great Lawn
located at 1600 John Buck O’Neil Way, to hold the Unite KC Walk for Unity event on June 14, 2025. They

expect up to 1,000 attendees.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $1,000 for this one-day sales on
public property event. The event hours are from 8:30am to 12pm on June 14, 2025. The certificate of
insurance will cover all applicable requirements and will be due 14 days before the first date of the event.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

A list of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Safety and security plan

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event

A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event

NN RADDN =

Resolution #32794 — Facility Use with Concession Agsreement with Caribbean American Association
of Greater Kansas City & Authentic Caribbean

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Caribbean American Association of Greater Kansas City &
Authentic Caribbean and authorized the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the
Board.

Background: The Caribbean American Association of Greater Kansas City &Authentic Caribbean
Foundation Inc. is a not-for-profit organization geared towards transforming the lives of the Caribbean
children impacted by disabilities, HIV/AIDS, and their caregivers, through health and educational support.
The Caribbean American Cultural Extravaganza event will be a celebration of National Caribbean
American Heritage Month, Culture and Community for our city. This event will include music, food, and
arts & crafts.

The Caribbean American Association of Greater Kansas City &Authentic Caribbean Foundation Inc.
wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for the use of Washington Square Park
located at 100 E. Pershing Rd, to hold the Caribbean American Cultural Extravaganza on June 28, 2025.
They are expecting approximately 500 participants throughout the day.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 17

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $1,000 for this one-day sales event.
Set-up for the festival will begin at 8am and tear down will end at 10pm on June 28, 2025. The festival
hours are from 12pm to 9pm. Security will be on site. Certificate of insurance will cover all applicable
requirements and be due 14 days before the first event date.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

A list of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Safety and security plan

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event.

A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event.

NI R LD~

Resolution #32795 — Parking Lot Lease Agreement with JE Dunn — Swope Park Pool Parking Lot

On a motion by Commissioner Contreras, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board approved the
Parking Lot Lease Agreement with JE Dunn and authorized the Director or designee to execute the
agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: JE Dunn is the contractor for the Giraffe Habitat Project at the Kansas City Zoo. The new
giraffe habitat will bring upgrades including year-round indoor viewing of the giraffes, a giraffe feeding
experience, and updated amenities in the 30-year-old Africa section of the Kansas City Zoo.

The parking lot at Swope Park Pool is located close to the project construction site. Swope Park pool has
been closed since 2020 due to its poor condition. Leasing the parking lot to JE Dunn does not affect the

city’s operation.

This lease agreement will permit JE Dunn to use the parking lot for a period of 15 months. In consideration
of the benefits received by the city from the improvements to the Kansas City Zoo, JE Dunn will not be

charged rent for its use of the parking lot.

Resolution #32796 — Design Professional Agreement with SFS Architects, Inc — Line Creek
Community Center/Frank Vaydik Park Master Plan

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Design Professional Agreement with SFS Architects, Inc. for Line Creek Community Center/Frank
Vaydik Park Master Plan in the amount of $201,367 and authorized the Director or designee to execute
the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Frank Vaydik Park has about 176.06 acres of parkland which includes a park, Kanas City
Northern Miniature Railroad, Line Creek Community Center, and outdoor sports fields. The land was
acquired in 1966. The master plan will include community engagement with all the different neighborhood
groups that are in proximity to the project area. The master plan is a high-level plan and report listing all
planned improvements for the area with priorities and cost estimates. The master plan will include analysis
of potential new Hopewell American archaeological sites in the park. Also, the plan will identify any new



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 18

recreational assets to add to the park or identify assets that could be enhanced for better usage by the public.

SFS Architects, Inc. will continue their work by using the recommendations from the Line Creek Community
Center Assessment as a foundation for the Master Plan. This design profession project will focus on
identifying & protecting new Native American historic sites, identifying assets to use for outdoor
programming in park, identifying infrastructure improvements to make in the park and any additional
expansions of existing amenities in the park. The contact amount for the Line Cree Community Center/Frank
Vaydik Park Master Plan is $201,367.00. SFS Architects will complete the work within 365 calendar days

after notice-to-proceed.

The Civil Rights and Equal Opportunity (CREQO) Department set goals of 15% MBE and 15% WBE for this
project. SFS Architect’s participation plan of $34.6% MBE and 14.7% WBE has been submitted to CREQ.
This project will be funded through Council District 2 PIAC Funds.

Resolution #32797 — Agreement with City of Fountains Foundation - Loose Park Rose Garden
Fountain Renovation

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Agreement with City of Fountains Foundation for Loose Park Garden Renovation and authorized the
Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Board of Kansas City, Missouri Parks and Recreation Commissioners, is being
requested to enter into an Agreement for the City of Fountains Foundation (CFF) to hire American
Masonry Restoration (AMR) to clean, conserve, preserve, restore and protect the Rose Garden Fountain at
Jacob L. Loose Park, which is on parkland belonging to the city. The location of this asset is at 5100
Wornall Road, toward the northwest corner of the park and is centrally positioned within the oval-shaped
pergola and garden with over 3,000 rose bushes flanked by geometrically configured walkways which are
all a part of the Laura Conyers Smith Municipal Rose Garden amenity.

This Agreement will allow CFF to engage their contractor to complete sequential tasks over a 30-day period
associated with the Fountain’s Renovation, Maintenance & Use. The main goals of the project are to
maintain the appearance and condition of the fountain bowl and containment area through use of the
following processes: Reklaim Cleaner and pressure washing, clean around patch area to get material to
match fountain stone, clean outer stone ring, seal cap on pool wall and ring outside of sidewalk, install patch
material on fountain and carve to match pool, install submersible chalk on any crack in the pool, remove
caulk between cap stones on pool wall and re-caulk, consolidation process and neutralization apply micro
coat and polyfabric, apply top cot and final clean up. The price of $71,671.00 has been quoted for the 2025
materials and labor to complete this project. CFF agrees to require its Contractor(s) to pay for the work
and labor of all laborers employed on the job and all materials used therein. CFF and its contractors will
have in effect throughout the duration of this contract insurance as required by City. CFF agrees to require
its Contractors to make good all faulty workmanship within a period of one (1) year from the date of final

acceptance.

The city will provide PIAC funding in an amount not to exceed $20,625, with the remaining funds in the
amount of $51,046, to be paid for by COF, total amount of project is $71,671.00. COF.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 19

Resolution #32798 — Professional Services Contract with Creative Sculpture & Restoration. Inc. —
Meyer Circle Sea Horse Fountain Sculpture Repairs

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Agreement with Creative Sculpture & Restoration, Inc. in the amount of $29,245 and authorized the
Director or designee to execute the contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Board of Kansas City, Missouri Parks and Recreation Commissioners, is being
requested to enter into a Professional Services Contract with Creative Sculpture & Restoration, Inc. to
make repairs to broken pieces of two (2) lion heads and two (2) horse ears, tail, hoof, arm of child, bowl,
and any substantially discovered broken pieces of the Sea Horse Fountain Sculptures. The location of this
fountain is at Ward Parkway & W Meyer Boulevard.

The main goals of the project are to maintain the appearance and condition of the fountain sculpture
through use of the following processes: repair broken limestone pieces with Cathedral Stone John M70,
repair hairline cracks with injection of Cathedral Stone Jahn M32 grout, and seal all repaired areas after
completion with Prosoco Natural Stone Treatment.

The repair work will be completed for a maximum amount of $29,245.00 and completed within 60 calendar
days after notice-to-proceed. This agreement will be funded from Meyer Circle Fountain Mainteancne

Endowment.

Resolution #32799 — Shoal Creek TIF 6" Amendment to the Reimbursement Prioritization
Agreement

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved the
Shoal Creek TIF 6" Amendment to the Reimbursement Prioritization Agreement and authorized the
Director or designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.

Background: On May 21, 2019, the Board approved Amendment #1 to the Reimbursement Prioritization
Agreement. It provided an additional $900,000 in funding for the Hodge Park projects for a total funding
amount of $4,620,000. The Hodge Park improvements included trails and other park improvements,
destination playground, multipurpose fields, parking lot improvements, and water main extension into the
north portion of the park.

On May 5%, 2020, the Board approved Amendment #2 to the Reimbursement Prioritization Agreement. On
January 12", 2021, the Board approved Amendment #3 to the Reimbursement Prioritization Agreement,
On August 24, 2021, the Board approved Amendment #4 to the Reimbursement Prioritization Agreement.
On July 26™, 2022, the Board approved Amendment #5 to the Reimbursement Prioritization Agreement.
Amendment #2 through #5 included updates to Section 2. Reimbursement Percentages; Section 9. Notices;
and Exhibit K Reimbursement Amounts.

Amendment #6 to the Reimbursement Prioritization Agreement will add $550,000 for Hodge Park Sports
Field Lighting to Exhibit K Reimbursement Amounts.

The Parks Director is a signatory to the Shoal Creek Reimbursement Prioritization Agreement and has been
requested to approve this Amendment to the Plan.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 20

Resolution #32800 through Resolution #32831 — Bid Award of Contracts for Grounds Maintenance
Services on Parks

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved
Resolutions #32800 through Resolutions #32831 for Bid Awards for Grounds Maintenance Services on Parks
and authorized the Director or designee to execute the contracts on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Parks mowing contracts were sent out for bid in 2025 and awarded to contractors based
on the lowest and best bid.

Currently, the average cost per turf acre per cycle for ground maintenance services will be approximately
$89.48, but that doesn’t account for rights-of-way contracts that will be renewed for the 2025 mowing
season. The agreement included a total of Twenty-two (22) cycles.

Each contract grants the option during the term of this Contract, upon properly executed amendment, to
extend the term of this Contract for up to Five (5) year’s total per the awarded bid rates.

Resolution #32800 - Central District (CO2PQ) to RC Landscape $91.79/ acre for 57.50 acres.
Resolution #32801 - Central District (CO3PQ) to RC Landscape $61.95/ acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32802 - Central District (C04P) to Envision lawn and Tree Services $55.40/ acre for 74.60
acres.
Resolution #32803 - Central District (CO5P) to) to Eyedeal Lawn Care Solutions for $121/acre for 27.67
acres.
Resolution #32804 - Central District (C06P) to RC Landscape for $55.40./acre for 54.56 acres.
Resolution #32805 - Central District (C07P) to Eyedeal Lawn Care Solutions for $58.25/acre for 20.60
acres.
Resolution #32806 - Central District (C02PQ) to RC Landscape $91.79/ acre for 57.50 acres.
Resolution #32807 - Central District (CO3PQ) to RC Landscape $61.95/ acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32808 - Central District (CO8P) to Lotus Lawncare and Services for $53.05/acre for 94.25
acres.
Resolution #32809 - Central District (C02PQ) to RC Landscape $91.79/ acre for 57.50 acres.
Resolution #32810 - Central District (C03PQ) to RC Landscape $61.95/ acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32811 - North District (NO2P) to Turf Boss LLC for $54.49/acre for 118 acres.
Resolution #32812 - Central District (C02PQ) to RC Landscape $91.79/ acre for 57.50 acres.
Resolution #32813 - Central District (CO3PQ) to RC Landscape $61.95/ acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32814- North District (NO3P) to Turf Boss LLC for 54.49/ Acre for 99.7 acres.
Resolution #32815 - Central District (C02PQ) to RC Landscape $91.79/ acre for 57.50 acres.
Resolution #32816 - Central District (CO3PQ) to RC Landscape $61.95/ acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32817 - North District (NO4P) to DG Landscaping for $68.59/ acre for 72.90 acres
Resolution #32818 - Central District (C02PQ) to RC Landscape $91.79/ acre for 57.50 acres.
Resolution #32819 - Central District (CO3PQ) to RC Landscape $61.95/ acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32820 - North District (NO5P) to DG Landscaping for $39.90 /acre for 98.5 acres
Resolution #32821 - Central District (C02PQ) to RC Landscape $91.79/ acre for 57.50 acres.
Resolution #32822 - Central District (CO3PQ) to RC Landscape $61.95/ acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32823 - South District (S01P) to Eyedeal Lawn Care Solutions for $55.40/acre for 83.4
acres.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 21

Resolution #32824 - Central District (C02PQ) to RC Landscape $91.79/ acre for 57.50 acres.
Resolution #32825 - Central District (CO3PQ) to RC Landscape $61.95/ acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32826 - South District (S02P) to Lotus Lawncare and Services for $60.00/ acre for 90 acres.
Resolution #32827 - Central District (C02PQ) to RC Landscape $91.79/ acre for 57.50 acres.
Resolution #32828 - Central District (C03PQ) to RC Landscape $61.95/ acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32829 - South District (S03P) to Eyedeal Contracting for $55.40/ acre for 74.70 acres.
Resolution #32830 - South District (S04P to RC Landscape for $55.40 / acre for 74.60acres.

Resolution #32831 - South District (SO5P) to Eyedeal Lawn Care Solutions $57.68/ acre for 34.5 acres.

Resolution #32832 through Resolution #32833 — Bid Award of Contracts for Grounds Maintenance
Services on Enhanced Parks

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved
Resolutions #32832 through Resolution #32833 for the Bid Awards for Grounds Maintenance Services for
Enhanced Parks and authorized the Director or designee to execute the contracts on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Enhanced Parks mowing contracts were sent out for bid in 2025 and awarded to contractors
based on the lowest and best bid.

Currently, the average cost per-turf acre per cycle for ground maintenance services will be approximately
$90.48.

Each contract grants the option during the term of this Contract, upon properly executed amendment, to
extend the term of this Contract for up to Five (5) year’s total per the awarded bid rates.

The Board approved awarding the contracts at the following rates for the number of specified acres:

Resolution #32832 - Central District (Ilus Davis Park) to DuPree for $705 per mowing cycle for 28
mowing cycles, $612 per fertilization, and $478.33 each for overseeding and aerification.

Resolution #32833 - Central District (Mill Creek) to Lotus for $900 per mowing cycle for 28 cycles
mowing, $100 per litter cycle for 36 litter cycles, $4,000 per fertilization, and $31,300.00 for fertilization,

overseeding, aerification.

Resolution #32834 through Resolution #32846 — Bid Award of Contracts for Grounds Maintenance
Services on Boulevards and Parkways

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved
Resolutions #32834 through Resolutions #32846 for the Bid Awards the bid award for Boulevards and
Parkways Grounds Maintenance Services and authorized the Director or designee to execute the contracts
on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Boulevards and Parkways mowing contracts were sent out for bid in 2025 and awarded to
contractors based on the lowest and best bid.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 22

Currently, the average cost per turf acre per cycle for ground maintenance services will be approximately
$89.48, but that doesn’t account for boulevards and parkways contracts that will be renewed for the 2025

mowing season.
The agreement included a total of Twenty-two (22) cycles.

Each contract grants the option during the term of this Contract, upon properly executed amendment, to
extend the term of this Contract for up to Five (5) year’s total per the awarded bid rates.

Resolution #32834 - Central District (C01B) to Lotus for $69.21/acre for 96.80 acres
Resolution #3283S5 - Central District (C02B) to TurfBoss for $67.45/acre for 82.20 acres.
Resolution #32836 - Central District (C03B) to $36.80/acre for 156.50 acres.

Resolution #32837 - Central District (C04B) to for $38.33/acre for 144.00 acres.
Resolution #32838 - Central District (C05B) to TurfBoss for $65.00/acre for 55.70 acres.
Resolution #32839 - Central District (C06B) to Eyedeal for $54.93/acres for 103.40 acres.
Resolution #32840 - Central District (C07B) to Lotus for 67/acre for 7.50

Resolution #32841 - Central District (C08B) to for 67/acre for 7.50

Resolution #32842 - Central District (C09B) to for 67/acre for 7.50

Resolution #32843- South District (S01B) to Eyedeal for $52.67/acre for 85 acres.
Resolution #32844 - South District (S02B) to TurfBoss for $52.00/acre for 39.23 acres.
Resolution #32845 - South District (S03B) to TurfBoss for $58.43/acre for 74.62 acres.
Resolution #32846 - South District (S04B) to Excalibur for $54.78/acre for 92.00 acres.

Resolution #32847 through Resolution #32860 — Bid Award of Contracts for Grounds Maintenance
Services on Right-of-Ways

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board approved

Resolutions #32847 through Resolutions #32860 for Bid Awards for Right-of-Ways Grounds Maintenance
Services and authorized the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: Since 2019, rights-of-way mowing contracts have been sent to bid and awarded to contractors
based on the lowest and best bid.

Currently the average cost per turf acre per cycle for ground maintenance services on rights-of-way will be
approximately $88.16 but that doesn’t account for rights-of-way contracts that are going back out to bid for
the 2025 mowing season.

Each contract grants the option during the term of this Contract, upon properly executed amendment, to
extend the term of this Contract for up to six (5) year’s total per the awarded bid rates.

Resolution #32847 - Central District (Central/West) to Lotus for $100.00/acre for 72.80 acres.
Resolution #32848 - Central District (Central/East) to Lotus for $100/acre for 51.50 acres

Resolution #32849 - North District (North/Trails) to DG Lawn Scaping for $55.00/acre for 67.30 acres
Resolution #32850 - North District (North/NE) to Lotus for $55.00/acre for 85.30 acres.

Resolution #32851 - North District (North/SW) to Lotus for $65.00/acre for 64.50 acres.

Resolution #32852 - North District (North/SE) to Lotus for $86.96/acre for 92 acres.

Resolution #32853 - North District (Cookingham) to Lotus for $99.34/acre for 30.20 acres

Resolution #32854 - North District (Vivion) to Lotus for $117.65 /acre for 17.00 acres.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of March 25, 2025 - Page 23

Resolution #32855 - North District (North/NW) to Lotus for $57.00/acre for 72.9 acres.
Resolution #32856 - North District (North/NC) to Lotus for $67.23/acre for 71.40 acres.
Resolution #32857 - South District (South/North) to Lotus for $101/acre for 58.10 acres.
Resolution #32858 - South District (South/SE) to Lotus for $67.55/acre for 92.10 acres.
Resolution #32859 - South District (South/Central) to Lotus for $89.76/acre for 86.90 acres.
Resolution #32860 - South District (South/SW) to Lotus for $102.04/acre for 39.20 acres.

Public Hearing:

e DJ Yearwood, Chair of the Kansas City Youth Commission, came before the Board on behalf of
the Youth Commission and shared their thoughts and concerns about the decline of youth
participation at Gregg/Klice Community Center. Mr. Yearwood further commented that the
Youth Commission would be interested in partnering with the department to look at ways to
address youth participation and programming at the center. Mr. Yearwood invited the Board to
their meeting this evening. The Board thanked Mr. Yearwood for attending the Board Meeting
and sharing his thoughts and concerns about programming at the Gregg/Klice Community Center.
Commissioner Smith commented that she is looking forward to collaborating with the
Commission on ways to bring more youth back to the center.

e Jacob Beck, Director of the Plaza Tennis Center came before the Board the Board and thanked the
Board for their support and partnership. Mr. Beck gave a brief update on new colleges and
schools that are now using the facility, as well as programming and events happening at the Plaza
Tennis Center. The Board thanked Mr. Beck for coming before the Board and sharing this
information.

CLOSED SESSION

On a motion by Commissioner Meier, duly seconded by Commissioner Contreras, the Board unanimously
approved by roll call vote to enter into a Closed Session to discuss real estate matters.

A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, all Board Members in favor, the Board unanimously
approved by roll call vote to leave Closed Session and enter back into an open meeting.

Board Meeting adjourned.

CLOSED SESSION

On a motion by Commissioner Smith, duly seconded by Commissioner Meier, the Board Meeting was
adjourned and resumed Commissioners resumed back into the Board Workshop.

Beth Haden, President Karmen Houston, Board Secretary
Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners



Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025

TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

FROM: Terrence Williams, Financial Manager

SUBJECT: Cooperative Agreement with Black Archives of Mid America FY26
Appropriations

Background
For Fiscal Year 2025-26, the Adopted Budget appropriates $300,000 from the Park Sales Tax Fund
for the Black Archives of Mid-America, Inc. (BAMA) a Missouri nonprofit corporation in good

standing with the Missouri Secretary of State.

A Cooperative Agreement has been created to provide $300,000 to BAMA through April 30, 2026
to pay for salaries and wages, expenses related to operations, programs and educational activities,

and collection’s care.

BAMA will continue to manage and operate the Black Archives Building and grounds and will be
responsible for the general condition and the day-to-day regular repairs and maintenance. The
Parks Department will continue to provide capital improvements and grounds maintenance,
address deferred maintenance contingent upon funding, and pay for the electricity and water bills.
BAMA will enter into a third-party agreement for each sublease with the agreement between the
Parks and Recreation Department, BAMA and the sublessee.

Recommendation
Staff recommends Park Board approval of new Cooperative Agreement with BAMA for $300,000
through April 30, 2026, and requests Board authorization for the Director of designee to execute

the Agreement on behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 22, 2025

To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Chris Cotten, Director of Parks and Recreation
Subject: Elmwood Cemetery Society Agreement

Background:

Elmwood Cemetery is located at 4900 East Truman Road, Kansas City, Missouri 64127, and the
Armour Memorial Chapel Cottage is located within the Cemetery. It is listed in the National Register
of Historic Places. ElImwood was founded in 1872. Elmwood encompasses forty-three acres and is
the final resting place for over 36,000 people including many of the Kansas City founders. The
beautiful Elmwood Cemetery grounds were designed by George Kessler who was instrumental in the
design of the Kansas City Parks and Recreation system. The first African American Police Officer
in Kansas City, Missouri, William F. Davis and his wife Annie are buried at this historic cemetery.
Other notable internments are Americus McKim and James Whitfield who were the first owner of a
Major League Baseball Team, the first Rabbi in Kansas City, Rabbi Marcu Cohen and Emma
Longan the first woman to serve on the City of Kansas City Council.

The Elmwood Cemetery Society purpose is to compile, maintain, and make available to the public
Elmwood Cemetery burial records and other records of historical significance and to maintain,
preserve and promote the Elmwood Cemetery. One of the early presidents of the Elmwood
Cemetery Society was August Meyer, who was also the first President of the Kansas City, Missouri
Park Board. Mr. Meyer sought the services of Kessler to create the master plan for Elmwood
Cemetery. Mr. Meyer is buried at the cemetery.

The Elmwood Cemetery Society and the Parks and Recreation Department would like to continue
the existing agreement for the City to aid in the costs for the mowing and maintenance to the
grounds and burial sites in an amount not to exceed Sixty Thousand Dollars no/100 ($60,000),
General Fund Account # 1000-702150-616150. The ElImwood Cemetery Society’s responsibilities
include preserving historical records associated with the Cemetery, including burial records, and
conducting tours of ElImwood Cemetery. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one
year beginning April 1, 2025, and ending April 31, 2026, and may be extended additional years, if
City funding becomes available.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends Board approval of the Agreement with the Elmwood Cemetery Society in the
amount of Sixty Thousand Dollars no/100 ($60,000) to be paid out of the General Fund and requests
Board authorization for the Director or his designee to execute the Agreement on behalf of the

Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 22, 2025

To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

From: Brad Clay, Deputy Director

Subject: Ashland Square Park Basketball Court Renovation
BACKGROUND:

Phillips 66, sponsor of the NCAA Big 12 Conference, would like to donate $100,000 for the renovation of
the Ashland Square Park basketball court (4507 E. 23" Street). Phillips 66 would only donate the money to
a 501(c)3 non-for-profit corporation and not directly to the Parks & Recreation Department. Phillips 66 will
make a $100,000 donation to the KC Parks Foundation.

KC Parks Foundation and the Parks Department will enter into a Grant MOU for the purpose of transferring
the funds to the Parks and Recreation Department and requiring the City to return any funds remaining to
the Foundation after the project has been paid in full. Once these funds have been transferred, the Parks and
Recreation Department will enter a contract to complete the renovations with PCC Sports, which include
the installation of basketball goals; resurfacing the courts; and Phillips 66/KCMO branding. The project is
anticipated to be completed this fall.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommend approval of the Grant Memorandum of Understanding with KC Park Foundation to allow
the $100,000 to be transferred to Parks and Recreation to be used to renovate the Parade Park Basketball

Courts,



Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025

TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

FROM: Rob Loya, Events Administrator

SUBJECT: Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Jazz District Renaissance
Corporation

BACKGROUND

The Jazz District Renaissance Corporation is a non-profit organization dedicated to the
development of the historic 18™ & Vine district as a premier destination. They seek to create a
sustainable, economically strong cultural neighborhood at 18" & Vine.

The Jazz District Renaissance Corporation wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concessions
Agreement for the use of the Paseo Boulevard, from 18" street to Truman Road, both northbound
and southbound lanes including sidewalks and the median to hold the American Jazz Walk of
Fame event on July 4, 2025. Both Northbound and Southbound lanes at 18™ and Paseo to Truman
Road will be closed during this event. The event is a celebration of the eleventh anniversary of
the American Walk of Fame as The Jazz District Renaissance Corporation welcomes the
community to join them for an outdoor concert featuring local musical artist and food trucks.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $1,000.00 for this one-
day sales on public property event. Set-up for the event will begin at 9am July 4, 2025, the event
is open July 4, 2025, from 5pm to 10pm, and tear down will end at 12am on July 5, 2025. They
are expecting 500 attendees and KCPD will be on site. The certificate of insurance will cover all
applicable requirements and be due 14 days before the first event date.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

A list of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Safety and security plan

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event.

A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event.

e R

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Board approval of the Agreement with the Jazz District Renaissance
Corporation and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute the agreement
on behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22,2025

TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

FROM: Rob Loya, Events Administrator

SUBJECT: Facility Use with Concession Agreement with O’Neill Events/Boulevardia

BACKGROUND

Boulevardia is an urban street festival celebrating the creativity and culture of a thriving, eclectic
city —Kansas City. Boulevardia was created as a small country with big ambitions. Using a “world
within a city” theme, Boulevardia seeks to bring together creative people, entrepreneurs, and
community leaders to develop and showcase ideas that can propel our community forward towards

a brighter future.

O’Neill Events/Boulevardia wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for
the use of Washington Square Park located at 100 E. Pershing Road and 26" and Grand Boulevard
and the street use/closure of Grand Boulevard from 26® to Ok St and Pershing from Grand to
MecGee to hold the Boulevardia Festival on June 14, 2025. The festival will include live music,
beverages, food vendors, a maker village, silent disco and more.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $7.300.00 for this 1-day
ticketed event. Set-up for the festival will begin at 7am on June 10%, 2025, and tear down will end
at Spm on June 17, 2025. The festival hours are from 12pm to 11pm June 14™, 2025. KCPD will
be onsite, and they anticipate 20,000 participants. Certificate of insurance will cover all applicable
requirements and be due 14 days before the first event date.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

A list of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Safety and security plan

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event.

A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event

e

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Board approval of the Agreement with the O’Neill Events/Boulevardia and
requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of
the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025

TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

FROM: Rob Loya, Events Administrator

SUBJECT: Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Kansas City Folk Festival
BACKGROUND

The Kansas City Folk Festival values equity and sustainability as a legacy for future generations

and festival, Grassroots in nature, we are dedicated to being family and earth friendly. Kansas City
Folk Festival is a free, all-day city festival that celebrates the folk arts of our neighborhoods, region

and beyond.

The Kansas City Folk Festival wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for
the use of Washington Square Park located at 100 E. Pershing Road to hold the Kansas City Folk
Festival on May 17, 2025. The festival will include live music, arts and crafts for sale, festival
merchandise, and farmers market type goods such as local city garden plants, seeds, as well as
food truck vendors. They are expecting 1000 participants.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $1,500 for this one-day
sales on public property event. Set-up for the festival will begin at 10am and tear down will end at
9pm on May 17, 2025. The festival hours are from 1lam to 8pm. Security will be on site.
Certificate of insurance will cover all applicable requirements and be due 14 days before the first

event date.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

A list of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Safety and security plan

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event.

A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event.

NI P L=

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Board approval of the Agreement with the Kansa City Folk Festival and
requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of
the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 22, 2025
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Christopher Cotten, Director

Subject:  Facility Use with Concession Agreement with JuneteenthKC Parade and Festival

Background:
JuneteenthKC wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for the use of The Great Lawn

in The Parade, located at Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. and Truman Road, and the Gregg/Klice Community
Center located at 1600 John Buck O’Neil Way to hold the 8th Annual Juneteenth Parade, June 7th (Parade)
and the 14™ Annual Juneteenth Heritage Festival, June 21st (Festival), 2025.

JuneteenthKC 2025 has become Kansas City’s premiere African American Heritage Celebration and tribute to
Horace Peterson III, founder of the American Jazz Museum, Negro Leagues Baseball Museum, and the Black
Archives Museum. The free community festival will include a performance stage, featuring family-friendly
musical acts, a kid’s zone, and food and merchandise vendors in The Great Lawn area of Parade Park from
12pm to 9:30pm. Many sponsors will also be on hand to address social issues within the community by
providing festival patrons access to service agencies and resources. Off-duty KCMO Police will be on hand

to help provide security.

KC Parks will be a sponsor for this event and will not be charging for the use of The Great Lawn, Gregg/Klice
Community Center. The certificate of insurance covers all applicable requirements and will be due 14 days

before the first event date.
The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

Listing of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event

A plan to repair any turf or park damages associated with event

A written out plan with surrounding neighborhoods to address litter and parking
conditions during and after the event

NN BR WD

Recommendation:

Staff recommends Board approval of the agreement with JuneteenthKC Parade and Festival and request Board
authorization for the Director or her designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.

1



Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22,2025

TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

FROM: Rob Loya, Events Administrator

SUBJECT: Facility Use with Concession Agreement with Black Women Making Friends KC

BACKGROUND

Black Women Making Friends KC is a social group for black women in KC. This group has built
a sisterhood and a safe space for black women in Kansas City to connect, heal and grow together.
The Black Girl Picnic KC is the second Black Girl Picnic in KC. All black women are invited to
bring their picnic blankets and food and come hang out with the group at Theis Park.

Black Women Making Friends KC wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concessions Agreement
for the use of the Theis Park, located at 4701 Oak St, to hold the 2025 Black Girl Picnic KC on
May 24, 2025. They are expecting approximately 600 participants.

The Kansas City Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $1,000 for this one-day
sales on public property event. Set-up for the event will begin at 9a.m. on May 24, 2025, and tear
down will end at 6p.m. on May 24, 2025. The event hours are from 1p.m. to 6:00p.m on May 24,
2025. The certificate of insurance covers all applicable requirements and will be due 14 days before
the first date of the event.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

A list of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Safety and security plan

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event.

A written-out plan to address litter and recycling during the event.

NI RAELPN =

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Board approval of the Agreement with the Black Women Making Friends KC
and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf
of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Jennifer Jutte, Superintendent, Community Services

SUBJECT: Facility Use with Concession Agreement — KC Rebels Youth

BACKGROUND:

KC Rebels Youth is requesting the use of the facilities at Central Park to host a youth track and
field meet. This event will be open to ages 5 — 18 and will include running events, field events
and sprint hurdles. Medals for 1%, 2°¢ and 3™ will be awarded in all events.

City will be compensated $750.00 for field usage along with 10% of gate receipts and 20% of
concession sales for a total estimated payment of $1,525.00.

The terms of this agreement will begin May 3, 2025, at 7:00a.m. and will end on May 3, 2025, at
5:00p.m.

They also agree to comply with the Athletic Field Use Policy.

KC Rebels Youth will provide commercial general liability and sexual abuse/molestation
insurance coverage per City’s requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Board approval of this Facility Use with Concession Agreement with KC
Rebels Youth and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute the
agreement on behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Jennifer Jutte, Superintendent, Community Services

SUBJECT:  Facility Use with Concessions Agreement with Glory Bible Fellowship
International Church

BACKGROUND:

Glory Bible Fellowship International Church is requesting the use of the facilities at Central Park
to host a youth track and field meet. This event will be open to ages 5 — 18 and will include
running events, field events and sprint hurdles. Medals for 1%, 2" and 3" will be awarded in all

events.

City will be compensated $750.00 for field usage along with 10% of gate receipts and 20% of
concession sales for a total estimated payment of $1,004.00.

The terms of this agreement will begin May 26, 2025, at 7:00a.m. and will end on May 26, 2025,
at 5:00p.m.

They will also comply with the Athletic Field Use Policy.

Glory Bible Fellowship International Church will provide commercial general liability and
sexual abuse/molestation insurance coverage per City’s requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Board approval of this Facility Use with ConcessionsAgreement with Glory
Bible Fellowship International Church and requests Board authorization for the Director or
designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025

TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

FROM: Jennifer Jutte, Superintendent, Community Services Division

SUBJECT:  Professional Services Agreement with All Effort LLC for Mayor’s Night/Club KC
Summer Youth Program

BACKGROUND

In March bids were requested from organizations and agencies to submit a proposal that
demonstrated their capacity to implement entertainment, sports, and education programs for the
2025 Mayor’s Nights/Club KC Summer Youth programs. All Effort LLC submitted a proposal to
hold events at Gregg/Klice Community Center, located at 1601 E. 17" Terrace, and Southeast
Community Center, located at 4601 E. 63™ Street.

All Effort is a purpose driven sports organization strategically designed to engage, inspire and
elevate youth and young adults through the discipline of basketball. Their primary objective is to
develop well-rounded individuals by refining athletic skills, promoting accountability and
reinforcing the principles of unity, resilience, and character within a team environment. Their
foundation lies in a collective of seasoned mentors, coaches, and professionals who bring a diverse
range of expertise and a shared commitment to empowering youth.

These programs will be held from 6:00 p.m. — 11:00 p.m. on Friday evenings at Gregg/Klice
Community Center and Saturday evenings at Southeast Community Center, during the terms of
this agreement. All Effort LLC will provide the personnel, crowd control, entertainment, food,
marketing, and program supplies for a total cost of $70,000.00, $35,000.00 per location.

The terms of this agreement will begin on June 9, 2025, and end on August 15, 2025.

Commercial general liability and sexual abuse/molestation insurance will be provided per City’s
requirements. Funds will come from Account #2030-702091-619080.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Board approval of the Professional Services Agreement with All Effort LLC in

the amount of $70,000.00 and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute
the agreement on behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Jennifer Jutte, Superintendent, Community Services Division

SUBJECT:  Professional Services Agreement with All Effort LLC for Mayor’s Nights/Night
Hoops Summer Youth Program

BACKGROUND

In March bids were requested from organizations and agencies to submit a proposal that
demonstrated their capacity to implement entertainment, sports, and education programs for
Mayor’s Nights/ Night Hoops Summer Youth programs All Effort LLC submitted a proposal to
hold events at Southeast, Hillcrest, Garrison and Gregg/Klice Community Centers.

All Effort is a purpose driven sports organization strategically designed to engage, inspire and
elevate youth and young adults through the discipline of basketball. Their primary objective is to
develop well-rounded individuals by refining athletic skills, promoting accountability and
reinforcing the principles of unity, resilience, and character within a team environment. Their
foundation lies in a collective of seasoned mentors, coaches, and professionals who bring a diverse
range of expertise and a shared commitment to empowering youth.

The program proposed by All Effort LLC consists of a basketball component and an educational
component that will be offered to participants at each of the four locations. The basketball
component will consist of weekly league play with separate age divisions for boys and girls. All
participants will be required to attend the educational component. These events will be held
Monday-Thursday across all four locations during the term of the agreement for a total cost of

$110,000.00.
The terms of this agreement will begin on June 9, 2025, and end on August 15, 2025.

Commercial general liability and sexual abuse/molestation insurance will be provided per City’s
requirements. Funds will come from Account #2030-702522—619080.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommend Board approval of the Professional Services Agreement with All Effort LLC in

the amount of $110,000.00 and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to
execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025

TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

FROM: Jennifer Jutte, Superintendent, Community Services Division

SUBJECT:  Professional Services Agreement — All Effort LLC- Mayor’s Nights/Night Nets
Summer Youth Program

BACKGROUND

In March bids were requested from organizations and agencies to submit a proposal that
demonstrated their capacity to implement entertainment, sports, and education programs for
Mayor’s Nights/Night Nets Summer Youth programs. All Effort LLC submitted a proposal to hold
volleyball events at Hillcrest Community Center.

All Effort LLC will provide informative workshops for personal development and athletic activity
for youth ages 9-18. The goal is to introduce and connect youth with community role models who
will engage them in health and career-related sessions as well as in the sport of volleyball.

Ages 9-12 will be taught the basics of the game followed by nightly workshops on topics that
include nutrition, exercise/fitness, and self-estcem/attitude. Ages 13-18 will participate in warm-
up drills and tournament style play. These programs will be held on Wednesdays from 6:00 p.m.
— 8:00 p.m. during the terms of this agreement. All Effort LLC will provide the staff and supplies
for a total cost of $20,000.00.

The terms of this agreement will begin on June 9, 2025, and end on August 15, 2025.

Commercial general liability and sexual abuse/molestation insurance coverage will be provided
per City’s requirements. Funds will come from Account #2030-702091-619080.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Board approval of the Professional Services Agreement with All Effort LLC in

the amount of $20,000 and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute
the agreement on behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Kevin Kearney, Manager of Recreation

SUBJECT: Facility Use without Concession Agreement —Brookside Soccer

BACKGROUND:

Brookside Soccer is requesting the use of the soccer facilities at Frank Vaydik Park for youth
soccer activities. Activities will take place from 10:00 a.m. — 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays and
Sundays, 5:00p.m. — 8:00p.m. on Wednesdays during the terms of this Agreement.

Brookside Soccer will compensate the City $25.00 per hour for total compensation of $8,625.00.
Nonpayment of rental fees will result in immediate termination of this Agreement.
They agree to comply with the Athletic Field Use Policy.

The terms of this Agreement will begin on May 3, 2025, and end no later than November 30,
2025.

Brookside Soccer will provide commercial general liability and sexual abuse/molestation
insurance per City’s requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommend Board approval of this Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
Brookside Soccer and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute the
agreement on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Jennifer Jutte, Superintendent, Community Services

SUBJECT: Facility Use without Concession Agreement — Northland Static Volleyball Club

BACKGROUND

Northland Static Volleyball Club, located in North Kansas City, prides itself on preparing young
athletes physically and mentally while teaching proper techniques of volleyball fundamentals. The
organization also prepares players for a higher level of play in high school and college while
teaching character on and off the court.

Northland Static Volleyball Club is requesting the use of the facilities at Kansas City North
Community Center for volleyball training and instruction on Tuesdays and Thursdays, 5:30p.m. -
8: 30p.m. during the terms of this agreement.

Compensation will be at the non-prime rate of $50.00/hour for .5 hours or $25.00, and 2.5 hours
at the prime rate of $75.00/hour or $187.50, for a total daily rate of $212.50

Total compensation is projected to be $11,262.50.
The terms of this Agreement are from May 6, 2025 — March 31, 2026.

Northland Static Volleyball will provide commercial general and sexual abuse molestation
insurance per City requirements.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Board approval of the Facility use without Concession Agreement with Northland Static
Volleyball club and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute the agreement on

behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Kevin Kearney, Manager of Recreation

SUBJECT:  Facility Use without Concession Agreement with Ryogoku Soccer Academy

BACKGROUND:

Ryogoku Soccer Academy is requesting the use of facilities at 9% and Van Brunt Athletic Fields
Park for the purpose of conducting youth soccer practices on one half of the field and games on
the entire field during the terms of this Agreement.

Ryogoku Soccer Academy will compensate the City $37.50/hour for practices and $112.50 per
game for a total compensation of $3,075.00, paid monthly upon receipt of Athletics invoice.

Nonpayment of rental fees will result in immediate termination of this Agreement.
They agree to comply with the Athletic Field Use policy.
The terms of this Agreement will begin on May 1, 2025, and end no later than May 31, 2025.

Ryogoku Soccer Academy will provide commercial general liability and sexual abuse
molestation insurance per City’s requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Board approval of this Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
Ryogoku Soccer Academy and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to
execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Jennifer Jutte, Superintendent, Community Services

SUBJECT: Facility Use without Concession Agreement — Kenneth Brink

BACKGROUND:

Kenneth Brink has requested the use of facilities at Kansas City North Community Center for the
purpose of offering judo instruction to youth, advanced youth and adults.

Classes will be held on Mondays, Tuesdays and Thursdays during the term of this agreement.
The City will be compensated a 40% revenue share of approximately $522.00/month for a total
estimated revenue payment of $6,2,64.00. Payments will be made monthly.

This agreement will begin on May 11, 2025, and end April 30, 2026.

Kenneth Brink will provide commercial general liability and sexual molestation insurance per
City’s requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Board approval of the Facility Use without Concession Agreement with
Kenneth Brink and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute the
agreement on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22,2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Jennifer Jutte, Superintendent, Community Services

SUBJECT: Amendment #1 to the Facility use without Concession Agreement with Come to
Jesus Worship and Praise Church

BACKGROUND:

On June 25, 2024, the Parks Board of Commissioners, through Resolution #32577, approved an
agreement with Come to Jesus Worship and Praise Church to conduct church services at Gregg
Klice Community Center. Services are conducted from 11:00am — 2:00pm each Sunday in the
computer room during the terms of this agreement. This agreement confirmed messaging only to
participants of the church services. No messaging was to occur in any other space at the
community center including the sidewalks, parking lots and common areas.

The original terms of the Agreement began on July 7, 2024, and would end on April 27, 2025.
This Amendment No.1 will change the end date to April 26, 2026. City will be compensated
$45:00/hour for a total compensation of $7,020.00.

All other terms stated in the original Agreement remain the same.

Nonpayment of rental fees will result in immediate termination of this Agreement.

Come to Jesus Worship and Praise Church will provide commercial general liability insurance per
City’s requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommend Board approval of Amendment #1 to the Facility Use without Concession
Agreement with Come to Jesus Worship and Praise Church and requests Board authorization for
the Director or designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Jennifer Jutte, Superintendent, Community Services

SUBJECT: Facility Use without Concessions Agreement — VLI Kings

BACKGROUND

VLIJ Kings is requesting the use of the facilities at Marlborough Community Center for youth
basketball practice on Tuesdays and Wednesdays, 7:00 p.m. - 8:30 p.m., during the terms of this
Agreement.

Compensation will be at a rate of $50.00/hour, for a total compensation of $3,300.00.
The terms of this Agreement are from April 29, 2025 — September 30, 2025.

VLJ Kings will provide commercial general and sexual abuse molestation insurance per City
requirements.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Board approval of this facility use agreement with VLI Kings and requests Board
authorization for the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 22, 2025
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: James Wang, Deputy Director

Subject: Approval of Northland Trailhead Study

Background
With a majority of new residential development occurring in the northland with new trail

connections, new trailtheads are often times completed to help residents locate and utilize new trails.
The Northland Trailhead Study was conducted listing recommended locations for new trailheads
which would includes items like parking, water fountains, trail maps, trash receptacles, etc. The
plan also included priority locations and cost estimates for these trailheads.

The Northland Trailhead Study planning process included a public engagement component using
Social Pinpoint, a software that allows residents the opportunity to locate on a map where they
would like to see change happen as well as comment regarding issues that they face. The software
could be accessed through QR code signs that were posted in our existing trail system in the
northland. The design team also participated in in-person pop-up events including youth soccer
games and Northland Problem Solving meetings, facilitated by Northland Neighborhoods

Incorporated.

Through the process of analyzing community input and a number of site factors, four trailhead
locations were selected for the first phase of implementation including Line Creek Parkway and
NW Barry Road and Buckeye Greenway and NE Milan Avenue for new trailhead locations.
Renovated trailhead locations would be located at Line Creek Community Center and Fairfield
Park. Construction drawings have been completed for the sites at Line Creek Parkway and NW
Barry Road and Fairfield park. These construction drawings will act as blueprints for the other
10 sites located within the location matrix.

The Marlborough Park master plan was presented at the February 25, 2025, pre-board workshop,
with report updates provided at the March 25, 2025 pre-board workshop.

Recommendation
Staff recommends Board approval of this resolution adopting the Northland Trailhead Study.




Intra-Departmental Communication

DATE: April 22, 2025
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: James Wang, Deputy Director

SUBJECT: Construction Change Order #2 with National Streetscape, Inc. for Teresa Lynn
Rynard Park (formerly Buckeye Greenway) Pedestrian Bridge

Background
On November 14, 2023, the Board awarded the construction of Buckeye Greenway Pedestrian

Bridge and demolition of the old concrete bridge. Buckeye Greenway was acquired in 1957 and
contains 72 acres. The park runs from MO 210 Highway and N. Brighton to N.E. 37th Street. On
October 22, 2024 the Park Board passed Resolution #32674 changing the name of Buckeye
Greenway Park to Teresa Lynn Rynard Park. The project location is in the northern portion of the
greenway. In 2016 a pedestrian bridge was constructed to connect the Chouteau Estates
neighborhood to Chouteau Elementary School. An existing, old concrete pedestrian bridge was
already in place for the eastern crossing of Buckeye Creek and the next priority for the greenway
was to replace that bridge with a new bridge. The contract amount for construction was
$376,690.00 and final completion was scheduled for January 14, 2024. Change Order #1 in the
amount of $137,800.00 was approved as Resolution 32708 for trail, a small shelter, and
furnishings. Change Order #1 added 150 calendar days to the contract time for a final completion
date of July 13, 2025 and brought the total contract amount to $514,490.00.

Change Order #2 in the amount of $5,700.00 will allow the construction of 114 linear feet of round
rail fence along bridge approaches next to the trail approved in Change Order #1. Change Order
#2 will add 60 calendar days to the contract time for a final completion date of Sept. 11, 2025 and
will bring the total contract amount to $520,190.00.

Funding for this contract is provided through PIAC funds in account #3090-708109-611060-
70223100. CREO-KC set utilization goals of 15% MBE and 15% WBE for this project. The
National Streetscape Inc. utilization goals of 16% MBE and 15% WBE were approved by CREO-
KC.

Recommendation

Staff recommends Board approval of Change Order #2 with National Streetscape, Inc. for the
Teresa Lynn Rynard Park (formerly Buckeye Greenway) Pedestrian Bridge project in the amount
of $5,700.00 extending the contract time by 60 calendar days and requests authorization for the
Director or his designee to execute the change order on behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 22, 2025

To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

From: James Wang, P.E., Chief Engineer, Park Planning, Engineering and Design
Subject: SLBE Design Professional Services Agreement

Budd Park Shelter and Loop Trail Design

Background
Budd Park, located at 5001 St. John Avenue, was acquired in 1890. This 26-acre park provides 1

swimming pool, 1 soccer playing field, 1 baseball field, 2 playgrounds, 2 shelters, 1 Mini-Pitch
soccer court, 2 basketball pads and a 3,628 linear foot loop trail. Recent improvements consist of
2 new shelter pads, sidewalks and trails along Budd Park Esplanade and a service drive for the
swimming pool. The next funded improvements for the park consist of restoring the existing loop
trail, restoration of the historic shelter and an access road to the shelter or a parking lot.

On March 25, 2022, the Parks Department selected DRAW Architecture from Kansas City,
Missouri to provide the public engagement and conceptual design of the shelter. The conceptual
design was completed in fall of 2024.

DRAW Architecture and Parks staff have defined the shelter and loop trail design scope of work
and deliverables for a total design fee of $159,125. This agreement will provide schematic design,
design development, construction documents and construction administration for a contract period
of 560 calendar days from Notice to Proceed.

Funding for this agreement will come from account numbers 3090 708409 611060 70240141 for
the Shelter and 3090 708409 611060 70240142 for the loop trail. DRAW Architecture is on the
CREQO list of approved SLBE firms capable to perform the work.

Recommendation

Staff recommends Board approval of an SLBE Design Professional Services Agreement with
DRAW Architecture in the amount of $159,125 with a completion date 560 calendar days after
notice to proceed and requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute and
administer the contract on behalf of the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 22, 2025

To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

From: James Wang, Deputy Director

Subject: SLBE Design Professional Services Agreement with Pendulum Studio, LLC for

Satchel Paige Stadium Masterplan

Background
Originally known as the Catholic Youth Council Athletic Field, Satchel Paige Memorial Stadium

is situated on East 51st Street near Swope Parkway. The baseball diamond is surrounded by
concrete bleachers with an awning overhead and a small press box at the back. The stadium is
part of the Kansas City Parks Department's Cultural Mall.

On October 4, 2024, the Parks Department received three proposals for the SLBE Sachel Paige
Stadium Masterplan project. Pendulum Studio from Kansas City, Missouri was selected for the
project. The scope of this agreement will cover site analysis, community engagement, concept-
level architectural design, conceptual site plan, and conceptual grading plan.

This work will be completed for a maximum of $70,000 and substantially completed within 365
calendar days. This agreement will be funded from PIAC funds in account number 3090 708409

611060.

Recommendation
Staff recommends Board approval of the SLBE Design Professional Agreement with Pendulum

Studio, LLC for the Sachel Paige Stadium Master Plan project in the amount of $70,000.00 and
requests Board authorization for the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of
the Board.




Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 22, 2025

To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

From: Doug Schroeder, Administrative Officer

Subject: Change Order #1 — Whitewater West Industries, LTD

Kiddie Play Structure — The Springs Aquatic Center

BACKGROUND:

On The Parks Department entered into an Agreement with Whitewater West Industries LTD on
September 11, 2024 for the purchase of a replacement kiddie structure for the Springs Aquatic Center.
The original purchase price was $324,000.00. The Parks Department was notified on April 14, 2025
that new tariffs for the projects steel and fiberglass components were being applied at an estimated cost
of $64,139.00. The exact total will not be known until the components reach US Ports and go through
customs. 45% of the components for the structure have been delivered and are on site. The steel and

fiberglass is necessary to complete the project.

Staff is requesting board approval to increase the amount of the purchase to include all tariffs that will
be applied to this order. The increase is not to exceed $75,000.00.

Funding will come form 2030-702584- Springs Aquatics.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Board approval of Change Order #1 to the Agreement with Whitewater West
Industries, LTD not to exceed $75,000.00 and requests Board authorization for the Director or
designee, to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.



